[image: ]

1600 Broadway, Suite 2200
Denver, CO 80202
	

CCHE AGENDA
VIRTUAL ONLY
April 4, 2025

11:30-12:30	Commissioner & Advisor Work Session

1:00 Business Meeting

ZOOM
(Meeting ID: 833 8429 0792 / Passcode: 994261)




CCHE April Agenda Book
Table of Contents
Agenda…………………………………………………………Pg. 3-4
Agenda Item I B – CCHE March Minutes………Pg. 5-9
Action Item III A……………………………………………Pg. 10-12
Action Item III B……………………………………………Pg. 13-14
Action Item III C……………………………………………Pg. 15-16
Action Item III D……………………………………………Pg. 17-18
CCHE By-Laws………………………………………………Pg. 19-22
Higher Education Glossary……………………………Pg. 23-26



Colorado Commission on Higher Education
Friday, April 4, 2025 Meeting Agenda
Virtual Only
ZOOM 
(Meeting ID: 833 8429 0792 / Passcode: 994261)
11:30-12:30
Commissioner & Advisor Work Session
Education to Employment Alliance Overview and Priorities
· Ed Sealover, Colorado Chamber of Commerce
· Shannon Nicholas, Colorado Succeeds

1:00 pm 
Business Meeting
I. Opening Business (30 minutes)
A. Attendance
B. Approval of the Minutes for the March 7, 2025 Commission Meeting
C. Reports
1. Chair
2. Vice Chair
3. Commission Standing Committees
a. Student Success & Workforce Alignment
b. Finance, Performance & Accountability
4. Commissioners
5. Advisors
D. Executive Director Report
E. Public Comment

II. Discussion Items (80 minutes)
A. National and State-Level Data, WICHE – Colleen Falkenstern, Director of Evidence and Strategic Initiatives, WICHE and Patrick Lane, Vice President, Policy Analysis and Research, WICHE
B. Legislative and Budget Update – Rachel Fischer, Legislative Liaison CDHE 
C. Updates on Colorado Statewide Longitudinal Data System (SLDS) – Michael Vente, Chief Performance Officer and Senior Director of Research and Data Governance CDHE

III. Action Items (10 minutes)
A. Degree Authorization – Arizona College of Nursing - Renewal of Provisional Authorization – Heather DeLange, Director, Office of Private Postsecondary Education
B. Degree Authorization – Taft University System - Renewal of Full Authorization - Heather DeLange, Director, Office of Private Postsecondary Education
C. Degree Authorization – Reach University - Renewal of Field Placement Authorization – Heather DeLange, Director, Office of Private Postsecondary Education
D. Degree Authorization – Liberty University - Renewal of Field Placement Authorization – Heather DeLange, Director, Office of Private Postsecondary Education



Minutes of the Colorado Commission on Higher Education (CCHE) Meeting
Virtual 
March 7, 2025 
 
Business Meeting	 
Chair Walmer called the business meeting to order at 1:02 pm. 
 
I.      Opening Business  
A. Attendance 
Commissioners attending: Chair Walmer, Vice Chair Gonzales, Commissioners Abramson, Harber, Kostenbauer, Tucker, Wilson, Executive Director Paccione 
 
Advisors attending: Sen. Marchman, Mr. Cavanaugh, Ms. Viefhaus-Zak, Dr. Lightner 
 
B. Approval of the Minutes for the February 7th Commission Meeting 
Commissioner Wilson moved to approve the February minutes. Seconded by Commissioner Abramson. The motion was approved by consent with no opposition. 
 
C. Reports 
1. Chair
Chair Walmer shared that she attended the NGA meeting with Governor Polis in Washington, D.C. on February 20th. She noted that there is an education, workforce, and community investment task force that is meeting separately than the governor's initiative across states. There was an interesting discussion on apprenticeships and non-degree pathways as part of the meeting. In addition, Governor Polis led a conversation with Kara Swisher and Dr. Emily Oster about education innovation, including the use of technology. The initiative will reconvene in New York on March 11th. Secretary McMahon will attend. 	 
 
2. Vice Chair
Vice Chair Gonzales acknowledged the work that’s happening across the Commission and the department and expressed her appreciation for the thoughtful conversations. 
 
3. Commission Standing Committee 
a. Student Success & Workforce Alignment 
Commissioner Abramson reported that the committee continues to work on mapping the entire post-secondary eco-system from apprenticeships and credentials to certificates to identify gaps as well as potential partners that could develop an interface. 
 
He also shared that he recently testified in favor of the transfer credit portal bill and thanked the staff for their work related to the transfer credit and work-based learning bills.  
 
b. Finance, Performance & Accountability 
Commissioner Tucker reported that the FPA Committee met on February 21st. They received updates on House Bill 24-1390 and the funding formula working group. They discussed the path forward for the capital and IT rubrics as those are getting ready to be rolled out with the IHEs. For the capital and IT process for the year, they also discussed the transfer portal and a grant that the department received to develop a transfer portal. Finally, he welcomed the new CFO, Zach Cartaya. 
 
4. Commissioners  
a. Commissioner Kostenbauer shared that she recently visited Fort Lewis College. She met with students from the Native American Center and had lunch with Heather Shotton, Vice President of Diversity Affairs. Commissioner Kostenbauer was very impressed by the students and their commitment to each other. She also met with the new career center director as well as President Schwartz and Interim Vice President of Finance and Administration, Samantha Gallagher. Though Fort Lewis is a liberal arts college, they encourage students to get also certificates in marketable skills, such as IT. She also noted that housing is difficult after the first two years because of high home prices in Durango.   
 
5. Advisors 
a. Advisor Cavanaugh reported that he was recently on a call to discuss an executive order. He shared that K-12 will likely be more heavily impacted by some of the programming and authority that the EO seeks to push down. He also suggested that it would take an act of Congress to dismantle some of the programs so instead they would likely be moved to other areas. He ended by commending Colorado for having a robust K-12 system through CDE and a robust higher education through CCHE and CDHE. 
 
b. Advisor Lightner shared a link to the Insider Higher Ed article about the Lumina Foundation closing out their 17-year plan and what is ahead. The plan looks at return on investment. He also shared a link to an article about the increase in transfer.  
 
D. Executive Director Report  
Executive Director Paccione started by introducing the new CFO, Zach Cartaya. She then announced that Brad Griffith will be joining the department on March 24th as the new Senior Director of Academic Pathways and Innovation. She also announced that Corey Evans, Budget Director, has accepted a new role at CDE.  
 
Executive Director Paccione shared that she continues to work with CEOs and recently traveled to Western Colorado University where she met with the senior leadership team and attended a playoff game of the women’s basketball team. She added that Western is reporting a higher-than-average enrollment next year and that they have a new program focused on mountain sports. 

She also mentioned the Dear Colleague letter and FAQs. She stated her belief that there is a lot of leeway for campus cultural centers as long as there is no discrimination, so she has advised CEOs to publicly note that they do not discriminate. She noted that the potential government shutdown could affect GEAR Up, which is federally funded. 
 
Dr. Paccione ended by sharing that she would be traveling to Durango on March 25th and March 26th   for an education consultation with the Ute, Mountain Ute, and Southern Ute tribes. She will be joined by CDE and CDLE. 
 
E. Public Comment  
None 
 
II.      Consent Items 
A. Approval of Proposed Changes to CCHE Policy I, Part L: Statewide Transfer and GT Pathways (Notification of Transfer Credit) - Christina Carrillo, Academic Policy Officer and Advocate and Liliana Diaz Solodukhin, Senior Director of Student Success and P20 Alignment, CDHE 
	Commissioner Abramson moved to approve the item. Seconded by 	Commissioner Tucker. The motion was approved by consent with no 	opposition.   
 
III.      Discussion Items  
A. Legislative Update – Rachel Fischer 
Ms. Fischer started with an update on HB 25-1038, the post-secondary credit transfer website. The bill made it out of committee February 13th and made it out with a unanimous vote. She thanked Commissioner Abramson for testifying on behalf of the commission. The bill is currently being held in appropriations as the committee is working through the long bill.  
  
She reported that a few amendments have passed the committee. L001, which is technical change and clarifies the work-related experiences policy submission from institutions. L002, which creates department duties to review transfer policies to inform the website and checks and charges the third-party vendor to work with the department and work with the IHEs on the functionality of the website. And L003, which makes the one-to-one portion of the website permissible.  
  
Ms. Fischer then shared an update on HB 25-1186, focused on work-based learning experiences in higher education, which made it out of committee with a 12 to 1 vote. The department is working on gathering  
interested funder letters to submit to the Appropriations Committee because we received notice that they want interested funder letters for gifts, grants, and donations bills. There are a few amendments attached to the bill, including a strike below that has a legislative declaration that aligns DHE and CCHE's intent on the need for work-based learning and the Talent Development Glossary.  
  
She shared that the department is still in the drafting process of the 1340 changes and we’re working with JBC members on a path forward. She noted that DHE is currently tracking 22 bills, including 1041, which concerns the payment of student athletes by an institution for their name, image, and likeness. DHE is neutral on the bill.   
  
House Bill 1192, which focuses primarily on financial literacy in the K-12 classroom. But it also has an expansive FAFSA CASFA completion clause in the introduced amendment that passed last night, it's L006 which states that a student will complete the FAFSA or CASFA beginning in 2028 unless the student declines and/or authorized personnel determines it is unfeasible. The bill passed out of the House Committee. DHE is in support of the bill and Dr. Johnson testified in support.  

Ms. Fischer mentioned 1221 permits the Emily Griffith Technical College to offer an associates of Applied Science degree with approval by SBCCOE. DHE is neutral. She went on to mention 087, Senator Marchman's bill related to reasonable ed accommodations in Higher Education. The bill passed the Senate and requires IHEs to create and adopt a policy and process to support the ability of a prospective admitted or enrolled student with a disability to voluntarily self-disclose and engage in an interactive process to receive an academic adjustment. DHE is neutral on the bill. 

There is also SB 120 from Senator Marchman, the Nuclear Workforce Development Education Program, which creates a nuclear workforce development and education program within DHE. Senator Marchman added that SB 120 is one of two nuclear bills going through the Capitol and they are hoping to get participation from both CU and CSU. Sen. Marchman also added that SB 087 would allow students in K-12 with IEPs and 504s to transfer the accommodations into higher education.  
Finally, Ms. Fischer provided updates on SB 154, access to educator pathways, which adjust the pathways and endorsements for special education teachers. CDHE is paying close attention to the TREP pathway amendment portion of the bill. DHE is neutral on the bill.   
Ms. Fischer ended by announcing that JBC figure setting would likely be held on March 12th. 
 
B. Funding Formula Update – Chair Walmer 
Chair Walmer started her report with a reminder that all of the meetings for the Formula Review Working Group are posted on the formula website. She shared that at recent meetings, they have broken into smaller working groups. At the February 21st meeting, in partnership with the Colorado Trustee Network, they reviewed survey results and then facilitated a roundtable conversation with Chancellor Garcia, Chancellor Frank, President Marshall, and CFO Chad Marturano of the CU system. The next working group meeting will be held on March 14th.  
Chair Walmer also shared that while there may not necessarily be a lot of improvement in the funding formula allocation model, that the process is important to understand what might be possible. It is about the approach rather than the amount of funding and ultimately, the institutions want to do things in the best interest of all Colorado students. Dr. Paccione added that the process helps ensure that stakeholders have buy-in and are able to co-create a solution where people have ownership.  
She noted that the next meeting will be held on Friday, April 4, 2025.
  
The meeting adjourned at 1:53pm.  


Action Item III, A (3 pages)

TOPIC:	Degree Authorization –Renewal of Provisional Authorization for Arizona College of Nursing – Denver  
 
PREPARED BY:	Heather DeLange, Office of Private Postsecondary Education 
 
I. SUMMARY 
 
This agenda item recommends the renewal of provisional authorization for Arizona College of Nursing to operate as an authorized private, degree-granting institution in Colorado pursuant to the Degree Authorization Act (§23-2-101 et seq.). 
 
II. BACKGROUND 
 
The Colorado Commission on Higher Education (CCHE) has statutory responsibility for administration of Title 23, Article 2 of the Colorado Revised Statutes, commonly referred to as the Degree Authorization Act (DAA). The Act sets out the terms by which the Commission may authorize accredited private colleges and universities, out-of-state public colleges and universities, and seminaries and bible colleges to operate in Colorado.     
 
The DAA outlines the Department’s jurisdiction over private education programs available to the residents of the state of Colorado.  The DAA establishes standards to (1) prevent misrepresentation, fraud, and collusion in offering educational programs to the public and (2) protect, preserve, foster, and encourage the educational programs offered by private educational institutions, which meet generally recognized criteria of quality and effectiveness as determined through voluntary accreditation. 
 
Arizona College of Nursing is applying to renew its Provisional Authorization for its Denver campus. The College is offering a Bachelor of Science in Nursing. Arizona College’s main campus is in Glendale, Arizona and has been institutionally accredited by the Accrediting Bureau of Health Education Schools (ABHES) since 1994. In 2022, ABHES included the Denver, CO campus in its list of accredited institutions, as a campus delivering instruction by means of in -person or blended formats. The pre-licensure Bachelor of Nursing program is accredited by the Commission on Collegiate Nursing Education (CCNE). Arizona College operates in nine other states: Arizona, California, Connecticut, Florida, Hawaii, Nevada, Texas, Virginia, and Utah and is approved by both the state authorizing agency and the respective Boards of Nursing in those states. The application included NCLEX pass rates for its Nevada and Tempe, AZ campuses and demonstrated a high pass rate, 97.4% and 100% respectively.  
 
III. STAFF ANALYSIS 
 
As required by the Degree Authorization Act, Arizona College submitted the required documents concerning its organization, programs, accreditation, and finances for the renewal of its Colorado campus. Arizona College of Nursing has been approved by the State Board of Nursing for Phase III, which allows the institution to enroll, instruct, and graduate students. Pursuant to the College’s renewal materials, the Denver campus has continued to hire new faculty and staff to support its 333 students. The Denver campus has now hosted an accreditation site visit for its institutional accreditor, the Accrediting Bureau of Health Education Schools (ABHES) and received its certificate of accreditation for the Denver campus. The first class is expected to graduate in April 2025. After the program graduates its first class, the Board of Nursing requires the Arizona College to apply for Phase IV Full Approval within one year of graduating the first cohort.   
 
All materials submitted and verified by staff are in compliance with requirements promulgated by the Degree Authorization Act.  
 
IV. STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Department staff recommends the renewal of Provisional Authorization for the Arizona College of Nursing, Denver campus.  
 
V. STATUTORY AUTHORITY 
 
C.R.S. §23-2-103.3 Authorization to operate in Colorado – renewal 
 
(1) (a) To operate in Colorado, a private college or university shall apply for and receive authorization from the commission. A private college or university shall obtain a separate authorization for each campus, branch, or site that is separately accredited. A private, nonprofit college or university shall submit with its application verification of nonprofit status, including a copy of the institution's tax-exempt certificate issued by the Colorado department of revenue. 
 
(b) After receiving an application, the department shall review the application to determine whether the private college or university is institutionally accredited by a regional or national accrediting body recognized by the United States department of education. The department shall not recommend and the commission shall not approve an application from a private college or university that, in the two years preceding submission of the application, has had its accreditation suspended or withdrawn or has been prohibited from operating in another state or that has substantially the same owners, governing board, or principal officers as a private college or university that, in the two years preceding submission of the application, has had its accreditation suspended or withdrawn or has been prohibited from operating in another state.  
 
(2) To operate in Colorado, a private college or university shall be institutionally accredited on the basis of an on-site review by a regional or national accrediting body recognized by the United States department of education; except that a private college or university may operate for an initial period without accreditation if the commission determines, in accordance with standards established by the commission, that the private college or university is likely to become accredited in a reasonable period of time or is making progress toward accreditation in accordance with the accrediting body's policies. The commission may grant a provisional authorization to a private college or university to operate for an initial period without accreditation. The private college or university shall annually renew its provisional authorization and report annually to the commission concerning the institution's progress in obtaining accreditation. 



Action Item III, B (2 pages)

TOPIC:	Degree Authorization –Renewal of Full Authorization for Taft University System   
 
PREPARED BY:	Heather DeLange, Office of Private Postsecondary Education	  
 
 
I. SUMMARY 
 
This agenda item recommends the renewal of Full Authorization for the Taft University System pursuant to the Degree Authorization Act (§23-2-101 C.R.S.). 
  
II. BACKGROUND 
 
The Colorado Commission on Higher Education (CCHE) has statutory responsibility for administration of Title 23, Article 2 of the Colorado Revised Statutes, commonly referred to as the Degree Authorization Act (DAA). The Act sets out the terms by which the Commission may authorize accredited private colleges and universities, out-of-state public colleges and universities, and seminaries and bible colleges to operate in Colorado.     
 
The DAA outlines the Department’s jurisdiction over private education programs available to the residents of the state of Colorado. The DAA establishes standards to (1) prevent misrepresentation, fraud, and collusion in offering educational programs to the public and (2) protect, preserve, foster, and encourage the educational programs offered by private educational institutions, which meet generally recognized criteria of quality and effectiveness as determined through voluntary accreditation. 
 
Pursuant to statute and policy, all authorized institutions under the DAA must renew authorization periodically.  The renewal period varies by the type of authorization that the institution holds from the CCHE.  A private college or university that has full authorization “shall apply for renewal of authorization in accordance with the schedule for institutional reaccreditation by its accrediting body or every three years, whichever is longer.” Taft University System recently received its accreditation renewal from the Distance Education Accrediting Commission.  
 
The Taft University System of Denver is a private, for-profit college located in Denver, Colorado and has been operating in Colorado as an accredited institution since 2006. The system office is located in Colorado and is comprised of William Howard Taft University and the Taft Law School. The former operates out of Colorado and the law school is located in California. The Distance Education Accrediting Commission accredits the system as one institution; the two institutions are considered divisions of Taft University System.  
 
 
III. STAFF ANALYSIS  
 
The Taft University System received a renewal of accreditation from the Distance Education Accrediting Commission at its January 2025 meeting. The Commission’s decision was based on the institution’s self-evaluation report, the Chair’s report, the institutional response to the Chair’s report and the institution’s most recent progress report. The vote demonstrates the Commission’s determination that the institution is in compliance with the standards of accreditation. Taft will undergo another comprehensive review for its next renewal of accreditation by June 2028.  
 
With the renewal of accreditation by DEAC, Taft University System applied to the Department for renewal of Full Authorization in accordance with the schedule for reaccreditation by its accrediting body.   
 
In addition to maintaining its accreditation, Taft University System continues to meet and comply with all authorization requirements for authorization to operate in Colorado.  
 
IV. STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Commission approve the renewal of Full Authorization for the Taft University System.  
 
STATUTORY AUTHORITY 
 
C.R.S §23-2-103.3(5) A private college or university that has authorization from the commission pursuant to this section and maintains its accreditation shall apply to the department for reauthorization in accordance with the schedule for reaccreditation by its accrediting body or every three years, whichever is longer. A seminary or religious training institution shall apply for reauthorization every three years. A private college or university or seminary or religious training institution that seeks reauthorization shall submit an application in accordance with the procedures and policies adopted by the commission and shall pay the reauthorization fee established by the commission pursuant to section 23-2-104.5. 
 
 


Action Item III, C (2 pages)

TOPIC:	Degree Authorization: Reach University –Renewal of Field Placement Authorization (with no instruction) 
 
PREPARED BY:	Heather DeLange – Office of Private Postsecondary Education 
 
 
I. SUMMARY 
 
This agenda item recommends renewal of the Field Placement authorization (with no instruction in Colorado) for Reach University. The authorization allows the University to place students at local sites at which students can complete hands on, experiential learning that is part of the students’ degree program. 
  
II. BACKGROUND 
 
The Colorado Commission on Higher Education (CCHE) has statutory responsibility for administration of Title 23, Article 2 of the Colorado Revised Statutes, commonly referred to as the Degree Authorization Act (DAA). The Act sets out the terms by which the Commission may authorize accredited private colleges and universities, out-of-state public colleges and universities, and seminaries and bible colleges to operate in Colorado.     
 
The DAA outlines the Department’s jurisdiction over private education programs available to the residents of the state of Colorado. The DAA establishes standards to (1) prevent misrepresentation, fraud, and collusion in offering educational programs to the public and (2) protect, preserve, foster, and encourage the educational programs offered by private educational institutions, which meet generally recognized criteria of quality and effectiveness as determined through voluntary accreditation. 
 
Authorization for Field Placements is for out-of-state institutions that intend to place more than ten students at one site to meet a field experience component of a degree program. Policy currently permits up to ten students to complete the field placement without authorization. Placements of more than ten students trigger the requirement for an institution to seek authorization.  Institutions authorized for field placement must renew their authorization annually.  
 
III. STAFF ANALYSIS  
 
Reach University is a private, not-for-profit, institutionally accredited postsecondary institution located in Oakland, CA. The University is accredited by The Western Association of Schools and Colleges, Senior College and University Commission. The University holds approval from the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing.  
 
The partnership provides Reach University’s online students who reside in Colorado the 
opportunity to complete the student teaching portion of the degree program within Colorado. Reach University’s plan is to apply for approval from the Colorado Department of Education for two programs for which it is seeking authorization for field placement: Bachelor in Global Education and Bachelor in Liberal Studies.  
 
The University is partnering with local school districts with the intention of employing the students in Colorado schools upon completion of the program. With the Colorado Department of Education’s approval of the programs, the students are eligible for licensure in Colorado.   
 
Staff has determined that Reach University continues to meet the criteria for the Authorization of Field Placements (with no instruction). 
 
IV. STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Commission approve the renewal of Authorization for Field Placements (with no instruction) for Reach University. 
V. STATUTORY AUTHORITY 
C.R.S §23-2-103.3(5)  
 
A private college or university that has authorization from the commission pursuant to this section and maintains its accreditation shall apply to the department for reauthorization in accordance with the schedule for reaccreditation by its accrediting body or every three years, whichever is longer. A seminary or religious training institution shall apply for reauthorization every three years. A private college or university or seminary or religious training institution that seeks reauthorization shall submit an application in accordance with the procedures and policies adopted by the commission and shall pay the reauthorization fee established by the commission pursuant to §23-2-104.5. 
 





Action Item III, D (2 pages)

TOPIC:	Degree Authorization – Liberty University - Renewal of Field Placement Authorization (with no instruction) 
 
PREPARED BY:	Heather DeLange, Office of Private Postsecondary Education 
 
 
I. SUMMARY 
 
This agenda item recommends the renewal of Authorization for Field Placements (with no instruction) for Liberty University under the Degree Authorization Act.    
  
II. BACKGROUND 
 
The Colorado Commission on Higher Education (CCHE) has statutory responsibility for administration of Title 23, Article 2 of the Colorado Revised Statutes, commonly referred to as the Degree Authorization Act (DAA). The Act sets out the terms by which the Commission may authorize accredited private colleges and universities, out-of-state public colleges and universities, and seminaries and bible colleges to operate in Colorado.     
 
The DAA outlines the Department’s jurisdiction over private education programs available to the residents of the state of Colorado. The DAA establishes standards to (1) prevent misrepresentation, fraud, and collusion in offering educational programs to the public and (2) protect, preserve, foster, and encourage the educational programs offered by private educational institutions, which meet generally recognized criteria of quality and effectiveness as determined through voluntary accreditation. 
 
Authorization for Field Placements is for out-of-state institutions that intend to place more than ten students at one site to meet a field experience component of a degree program. Policy currently permits up to ten students to complete the field placement without authorization. Placements of more than ten students trigger the requirement for an institution to seek authorization.  Institutions authorized for field placement must renew their authorization annually.  
 
III. STAFF ANALYSIS  
 
Liberty University is a private, not-for-profit, institutionally accredited postsecondary institution located in Lynchburg, Virginia. The Southern Association of Colleges and Schools has accredited the University since 1980. 
 
Liberty University is working in partnership with McAir Aviation in Broomfield, Colorado at 
Rocky Mountain Airport for its students completing the Bachelor of Science in Aeronautics. 
The partnership provides Liberty University’s online students who reside in Colorado the 
opportunity to complete the experiential learning portion of the degree program within the state. 
 
The only activity occurring at the Colorado site for the Liberty University B.S. in Aeronautics 
program is Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) approved flight training which consists of 
flight instruction, ground instruction and simulator training. The instruction is solely online but for the required aviation training. 
 
Liberty University meets the criteria for the Authorization of Field Placements (with no instruction) at its Colorado location and therefore meets the renewal requirements for this authorization level. 
 
IV. STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Commission approve the renewal of Authorization for Field Placements (with no instruction) for Liberty University. 
V. STATUTORY AUTHORITY 
C.R.S §23-2-103.3(5)  
 
A private college or university that has authorization from the commission pursuant to this section and maintains its accreditation shall apply to the department for reauthorization in accordance with the schedule for reaccreditation by its accrediting body or every three years, whichever is longer. A seminary or religious training institution shall apply for reauthorization every three years. A private college or university or seminary or religious training institution that seeks reauthorization shall submit an application in accordance with the procedures and policies adopted by the commission and shall pay the reauthorization fee established by the commission pursuant to §23-2-104.5. 
 
 


COLORADO COMMISSION ON HIGHER EDUCATION - BYLAWS
Section 1. Organization and Meetings
1.1 Organization: Pursuant to C.R.S. §23-1-102, the Commission shall consist of eleven members appointed by the Governor with the consent of the Senate. The members of the Commission are selected on the basis of their knowledge of and interest in higher education and shall serve for four-year terms. No member of the Commission may serve more than two consecutive full four-year terms.
1.2 Officers: Pursuant to C.R.S. §23-1-110, the officers of the Commission shall be the Chair and Vice Chair. The Secretary shall be the Executive Director of the Commission and the Department and is a non-voting member of the Commission. The Governor appoints, with the consent of the Senate, the Executive Director to serve as the executive officer of the Commission and the Department.
1.3 All officers shall be elected at the May meeting of the Commission to serve a term of one year, except the Secretary whose term shall be coterminous with his or her term as Executive Director. Any member may nominate themselves or another member to be chair or vice-chair. Members will vote on each position; if there is more than one nomination the vote will be conducted by private ballot to be counted by the Secretary. Officers shall be limited to two consecutive terms, unless an exception is approved by a vote of more than 60 percent of the Commission. When possible, a Commissioner is encouraged to serve as vice-chair prior to becoming chair.
1.4 Regular Meetings of the Commission: The Commission shall adopt at the October Commission meeting a schedule of regular meetings of the Commission for the following calendar year.
1.3 Notice of Meetings: Any meetings at which the adoption of any proposed policy, position, resolution, rule, regulation, or formal action occurs or at which a majority or quorum of the body is in attendance, or is expected to be in attendance, shall be held only after full and timely notice to the public. In addition to any other means selected by the Commission for giving notice to the public, the Commission shall post notice of its meetings at the office of the Colorado Department of Higher Education located at 1560 Broadway, Suite 1600, Denver, Colorado 80202 and on the Colorado Department of Higher Education website. Notices shall be posted no less than two days prior to the holding of the meeting. The posting shall include specific agenda information where possible.
1.4 Special Meetings: Special meetings of the Commission may be held at the call of the Chair on two days’ notice, or at the request of five members of the Commission who may petition the Chair to call such a meeting. Notice of special meetings shall be made electronically or by telephone and posted at the office and on the website of the Colorado
Department of Higher Education no less than two days prior to the meeting date.
1.5 Conduct of Meetings: The Chair shall preside at all meetings at which he or she is present. In the Chair’s absence, the Vice Chair shall preside, and in the event both are absent, those present shall elect a presiding officer. All meetings shall be conducted in accordance with all State laws and regulations. The parliamentary rules contained in Robert’s Rules of Order, latest revision, shall govern in all cases to which they are applicable, except as modified herein.
1.6 Attendance at Meetings: The term of any member of the Commission who misses more than two consecutive regular Commission meetings without good cause, as determined by the Chair, shall be terminated and his successor appointed in the manner provided for appointments under C.R.S. §23-1-102.
1.7 Preparation of Agenda: Meeting agendas shall be prepared by the Executive Director of the Department. A monthly agenda call will be scheduled with the Chair, Vice Chair, and Executive Director, or his or her designee, to discuss and approve the proposed agenda. At a regular or special meeting, an item of business may be considered for addition to the agenda by a majority vote of the Commissioners present.
1.8 Minutes of the Commission: The Secretary shall maintain an accurate set of minutes of Commission meetings, which shall include a complete record of all actions taken by the Commission. Such minutes shall constitute a permanent record. After the minutes of each meeting are completed they shall be reviewed by the Commission and, after approval, posted on the CCHE website and made available to the public for inspection upon written request.
1.9 Standing Committees: The Commission may create standing or ad hoc committees comprised of Commissioners to research and make recommendations on specific issues for the full Commission to consider and act on.
Section 2. Duties and Responsibilities of Officers
2.1 Chair of the Commission: The Chair of the Commission shall preside at meetings of the Commission at which he or she is in attendance.
2.2 Vice Chair of the Commission: The Vice Chair shall perform all duties of the Chair in the Chair’s absence.
2.3 The Secretary/Executive Director of the Commission: In addition to performing those duties established by law, the Executive Director of the Commission and Department shall: (a) serve as the Secretary of the Commission, (b) meet with the officers and staff of institutions of higher learning as the needs dictate for a mutual discussion of the matters affecting the responsibilities of the Commission, (c) meet with appropriate state and federal groups and/or officials on matters pertaining to the Commission, (d) meet with appropriate committees of the General Assembly on matters pertaining to the
Commission’s responsibilities, (e) appoint such professional staff as in his or her judgment are required and are within the budget approved by the Commission and for which funds are available, (f) prepare an annual operating budget and work program for approval by the Commission, (g) implement the policies of the Commission and communicate those policies to interested parties as appropriate.
Section 3. The Advisory Committee
3.1 There is hereby established an advisory committee pursuant to C.R.S. §23-1- 103). Advisory Committee Members: The advisory committee shall consist of not less than thirteen members, to be designated as follows:
(a) Six members shall be appointed from the General Assembly, including three senators, two of whom shall be from the majority party, appointed by the President of the Senate and one of who shall be from the minority party appointed by the Minority Leader of the Senate, and three representatives, two of whom shall be from the majority party, appointed by the Speaker of the House of Representatives and one of who shall be from the minority party appointed by the Minority Leader of the House of Representatives. Said six members shall be appointed for terms of two years or for the same terms to which they were elected to the general assembly, whichever is the lesser. Successors shall be appointed in the same manner as the original members;
(b) One member shall be selected and designated by the Commission, as recommended by the Colorado Faculty Advisory Council, to represent the faculty in the state;
(c) One member shall be selected and designated by the Commission, as recommended by the Student Affairs Council, to represent the students in the state for a term of one year, commencing on July 1 of the year appointed;
(d) One member shall be selected and designated by the Commission who is a parent of a student enrolled in a state supported institution of higher education in Colorado to represent the parents of students for a term of two years, commencing on July 1 of the tear appointed.
(e) Not more than four additional members representing educational or other groups may be selected and designated by the Commission to serve on the advisory committee. The Commission has designated the four additional advisory committee members to represent:
Chief Academic Officers of Colorado’s state supported institutions of higher education, as recommended by the Colorado Academic Council;
Chief Financial Officers of Colorado’s state supported institutions of higher education, as recommended by the Chief Financial Officers group;
Independent Higher Education Institutions in Colorado (Colorado College, Regis, and Denver University), as recommended by the Independent Higher Education Council; and,
The K-12 system, as recommended by the Colorado Department of Education.
All such appointments shall be for a term of two years, commencing on July 1 of the year appointed.
3.2 Notice and Agendas: All members of the advisory committee shall receive agendas and background material and be notified of all public meetings of the Commission and shall be invited to attend for the purpose of suggesting solutions for the problems and needs of higher education and maintaining liaison with the general assembly.
3.3 Recommendations of the Advisory Committee: The members of the advisory committee shall have full opportunity to present their views on any matter before the Commission.
Section 4. Change in Bylaws
4.1 Bylaws shall be subject to amendment at any meeting of the Commission provided any such proposed change is listed on the agenda in accordance with the procedure outlined in Section 1.5 Notice of Meetings. Bylaw changes must be approved by a majority of the Commission.
HISTORY: Adopted on September 10, 1965. Amended January 14, 1966; February 25, 1972; June 1, 1978; July 1, 1993; October 7, 2004; May 6, 2011; CCHE Agenda March 3, 2017 Item V; April 5, 2019

Higher Education Glossary
529 Savings Plan - 529 plans are more than just savings accounts. These state-sponsored college savings plans were established by the federal government in Section 529 of the Internal Revenue Code to encourage families to save more for college. They offer unique state and federal tax benefits you can’t get from other ways to save, making them one of the best ways to save for college.
Accuplacer - A suite of computer-adaptive placement tests that are used as assessment tools at institutions to evaluate the level of course work for a student. Students measured as needing additional course work will be assigned to remediation.
Admission Standard - includes both Freshman and Transfer standard. The freshman standard applies to all in-state and out-of-state new freshmen applicants and to transfer applicants with 12 or fewer college credit hours, except freshmen and transfer applicants who meet one of the admissions standards index exemptions. The transfer standard applies to all degree-seeking undergraduate transfer applicants with more than 12 college credit hours who do not meet one of the exemptions
Admission Window - Defined in Admission policy, "The maximum allowable percentage of admitted students who are not required to meet the CCHE admission standards within a specific fiscal year is referred to as the admissions window. Separate windows exist for the freshmen and transfer standards. The allowable percentage is determined by the Commission." The percentages vary by institution.
CAP4K - SB08-212, Preschool to Postsecondary Education Alignment Act; Colorado Achievement Plan for Kids.
CHEA - Council for Higher Education Accreditation. As described on their website, CHEA is "A national advocate and institutional voice for self-regulation of academic quality through accreditation, CHEA is an association of 3,000 degree-granting colleges and universities and recognizes 60 institutional and programmatic accrediting organizations."
CIP - Classification of Instructional Program; The purpose of which is to provide a taxonomic scheme that will support the accurate tracking, assessment, and reporting of fields of study and program completions activity. (Relevant in Role & Mission)
CLEP - College Level Examination Program; Earn college credit for passing a subject specific examination.
COA - Cost of Attendance; in the context of financial aid, it is an estimate of what it will reasonably cost the student to attend a given institution for a given period of time.
Concurrent Enrollment – A high school student enrolled for one or more classes at a college or university in addition to high school courses.
Dually Enrolled - A student enrolled at two institutions at the same time. This may affect enrollment reports when both institutions count that student as enrolled.
EFC - Expected Family Contribution; in the context of financial aid, it is calculated by a federally-approved formula that accounts for income, assets, number of family members attending college, and other information.
FAFSA - Free Application for Federal Student Aid. This is a free service provided by the Federal government under the Department of Education and students are not charged to complete/file the FAFSA.
FAP – Financial Aid Plan (HESP specific)
FERPA - Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, view federal website. The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) (20 U.S.C. § 1232g; 34 CFR Part 99) is a Federal law that protects the privacy of student education records. The law applies to all schools that receive funds under an applicable program of the U.S. Department of Education.
FFS – Fee-For-Service Contracts; A portion of the College Opportunity Fund program in addition to COF stipends, this contract provides funding to certain higher education institutions to supplement high cost programs and purchase additional services (such as graduate programs).
Floor - In reference to the admission window, the floor is the minimum requirement for admission without requiring an exception of some kind. This usually coincides with the Index score.
FTE - Full-time Equivalent; a way to measure a student's academic enrollment activity at an educational institution. An FTE of 1.0 means that the student is equivalent to full-time enrollment, or 30 credit hours per academic year for an undergraduate student.
GEARUP - Gaining Early Awareness and Readiness for Undergraduate Programs; A Federal discretionary grant program designed to increase the number of low-income students who are prepared to enter and succeed in postsecondary education.
Guaranteed Transfer, GT Pathways - gtPATHWAYS applies to all Colorado public institutions of higher education, and there are more than 900 lower-division general education courses in 20 subject areas approved for guaranteed transfer. Courses are approved at least twice per academic and calendar year and apply the next semester immediately following their approval.
HB 1023 - In most cases, refers to HB 06S-1023, which declares "It is the public policy of the state of Colorado that all persons eighteen years of age or older shall provide proof that they are lawfully present in the United States prior to receipt of certain public benefits."
HB 1024 - In most cases, refers to HB 06-1024, which declares "On or before September 1, 2006, each governing board of a state institution of higher education shall submit to the Colorado commission on higher education and the education committees of the senate and the house of representatives, or any successor committees, a report regarding underserved students".
HB 1057 - In most cases, refers to HB 05-1057, which declares "a college preparation program operating within the school district that the college preparation program shall provide to the Colorado commission on higher education, on or before December 31 of each school year, a report specifying each student, by unique identifying number."
HEAR - Higher Education Admission Requirements, 2008-2010.
Index, Index Score - This index score is a quantitative evaluation that is part of a larger student application evaluation. The score is generated from academic achievement (GPA or High School Rank) and college placement tests (ACT or SAT). You can calculate your index score online. Index varies by institution depending on that institutions selection criteria.
IPEDS - Integrated Postsecondary Education Data System; Run by NCES, this system collects statistical data and information on postsecondary institutions. The Colorado Department of Higher Education submits aggregated data on public institutions to IPEDS.
Need - In the context of student financial aid, Need is calculated by the difference between the COA (Cost of Attendance) and the EFC (Expected Family Contribution)
NCATE - National Council for Accreditation of Teacher Education; NCATE is the profession’s mechanism to help establish high quality teacher preparation.
NCLB - No Child Left Behind; The No Child Left Behind Act of 2001 (NCLB) reauthorized the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) -- the main federal law affecting education from kindergarten through high school.
PSEO - Post Secondary Enrollment Option; A program that offers concurrent enrollment in college courses while in high school.
PWR - Postsecondary and Workforce Readiness; Definition was created during the SB08-212 CAP4K meetings.
QIS - Quality Indicator System; Implemented in HB96-1219, the specific quality indicators involved in QIS are similar to those used in the variety of quality indicator systems found in other states: graduation rates, freshmen retention and persistence rates, passing scores or rates on tests and licensure examinations, undergraduate class size, faculty teaching workload rates, and institutional support/administrative expenditures.
REP - Regional Education Provider; Colorado Statute authorizes Adams State College, Fort Lewis College, Mesa State College and Western State College to function as regional educational providers and “have as their primary goal the assessment of regional educational needs..." Regional education providers focus their attention on a certain geographical area.
SB 3 – In most cases refers to SB10-003, the Higher Education Flexibility Bill.
SB 212 - In most cases, refers to HB 08-212, the CAP4K legislation.
SBE - State Board of Education; As described on their website, "Members of the Colorado State Board of Education are charged by the Colorado Constitution with the general supervision of the public schools. They have numerous powers and duties specified in state law. Individuals are elected on a partisan basis to serve six-year terms without pay."
SFSF – State Fiscal Stabilization Fund; A component of the ARRA legislation and funding.
SURDS - Student Unit Record Data System
WICHE - Western Interstate Commission for Higher Education; A regional research and policy organization that assists students, policymakers, educators, and institutional, business and community leaders. WICHE states include: Alaska, Arizona, California, Colorado, Hawaii, Idaho, Montana, Nevada, New Mexico, North Dakota, Oregon, South Dakota, Utah, Washington, and Wyoming.
WUE - Western Undergraduate Exchange Program, managed by WICHE


[image: ]1600 Broadway, Suite 2200, Denver, CO 80202555 Street Address, Room 555, Denver, CO 55555-5555 P 555.555.5555 F 555.555.5555 www.colorado.gov/xxx

Phone 303-862-3001 • Email CDHE@dhe.state.co.us
cdhe.colorado.gov

2

image1.png
COLORADO
. w Colorado Commission on

Higher Education

Department of Higher Education




image2.png




